
ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 
 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-2015-0010 HLC DATE:  July 27, 2015 
    August 10, 2015 
 PC DATE:  September 8, 2015 
  
Council District No. 1 
 
APPLICANTS:  Harold B. Groendyke and Catherine Lucchesi, owners 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Yerwood-Simond House 
 
WATERSHED:  Boggy Creek 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  2005 Hamilton Avenue 
 
ZONING FROM:  SF-3-NP to SF-3-H-NP 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the  proposed zoning change 
from single family residence, neighborhood plan (SF-3-NP) combining district to single 
family residence – Historic Landmark – neighborhood plan (SF-3-H-NP) combining district 
zoning. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
Architecture, historical associations, and community value. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:  Recommended the proposed zoning 
change from SF-3-NP to SF-3-H-NP.  Vote: 6-0 (Panju, McKenzie, and Tollett absent). 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The house is beyond the bounds of the Comprehensive 
Cultural Resources Survey (1984). 

CITY COUNCIL DATE:  October 8, 2015   ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  Organization of Central East Austin Neighborhoods 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Architecture:  
One-story, roughly rectangular-plan hipped-and-gabled brick veneered frame house with 
single and paired 1:1 windows; round-arched entry and arcade along the west elevation of 
the house; exterior stepped brick chimney on the front façade with randomly-placed stones 
and caps.  The house has Tudor Revival influences in its prominent front gable, but is also 
reminiscent of colonial French architecture in southern Louisiana with its round-arched 
brick arcade, gable-on-hip roof style, and massing. 

The design of the house is unique in Austin, and it is the largest house in this 
neighborhood, which is associated with and adjacent to Huston-Tillotson University. 

Historical Associations: 



The house was built in 1939 by Dr. Charles Yerwood, and his third wife, Ada DeBlanc Askey 
Yerwood, who later married Luther Charles Simond after Charles Yerwood died in 1940. 
 
Dr. Charles Yerwood was a very prominent African-American physician and surgeon in Austin 
at a time when there were very few African-American trained doctors, most African-Americans 
relying on home remedies and druggists for their illnesses.  Yerwood was born in Austin in 
1882, studied at Samuel Huston College in Austin and at Meharry Medical College in 
Nashville, Tennessee, then practiced in Oklahoma and later Gonzales, Texas before returning 
to Austin in 1925.  He purchased the house at 1115 E. 12th Street (now known as the Connelly-
Yerwood House, a city historic landmark) in 1926, where he raised his two daughters, both of 
whom achieved great successes in the field of medicine: Joyce Yerwood, who went to the East 
Coast, and Connie Yerwood, who returned to Austin and was a pioneer in public health.  
Charles Yerwood had his office at 421 E. 6th Street in Austin and continued to maintain his 
rural practice in Gonzales.  He was a strong advocate for improvements in the treatment of 
tuberculosis, which afflicted a huge number of African-Americans in the early part of the 
century.  He served as the secretary and treasurer of the Lone Star Medical, Dental, and 
Pharmaceutical Association, an organization of African-American health professionals, for over 
20 years. 
 
In 1929, Charles Yerwood married Ada DeBlanc Askey, who had been born into a large Creole 
family in Iberia Parish, Louisiana.  Her family had a small farm near New Iberia, Louisiana, 
but moved to Austin in 1914 for better economic opportunities.  In Austin, young Ada had little 
formal schooling, but was mentored by a neighbor and family friend, Professor Laurine C. 
Anderson (for whom L.C. Anderson High School was named).  Ada achieved her  high school 
equivalency from Samuel Huston College, then married a fellow student, Aubrey Askey, with 
whom she had 3 children, including Gilbert, who later became a nationally-known arranger 
and composer for Motown Records.  Gilbert Askey is credited with discovering the Jackson 5, 
and was nominated for an Academy Award for his work on the Billie Holiday bio-pic, Lady 
Sings the Blues, starring Diana Ross. 
 
Ada and Aubrey Askey divorced in 1927; she married Charles Yerwood in 1929.  They lived in 
the old Yerwood house on E. 12th Street before building this house in 1939.  Charles Yerwood 
continued his medical practice downtown, while Ada returned to school at Tillotson College.  
She taught at the Belton Colored School in Belton, Texas, then went on to Iowa State 
University to earn her master’s in home economics and child development.  In 1936, she 
returned to Tillotson College to become the head of the home economics department.  The 
Yerwoods built this house for themselves in 1939.  Charles’ daughter, Connie, eventually 
moved into the old family home on E. 12th Street. 
 
After her husband’s death in 1940, Ada Yerwood began her career in public health, especially 
in the area of improving facilities for tuberculosis, which her late husband had championed for 
many years.  She traveled across Texas, educating families about nutrition, sanitation, disease 
prevention, and safety, and recruited volunteers to form community health organizations.  She 
also continued her studies at several prestigious graduate schools throughout the country. 
 
In 1949, she married Luther Simond, a prominent teacher and school administrator.  They 
lived in this house until their deaths. 
 
After her official retirement, Ada Yerwood Simond did not stop in her relentless drive to 
improve the conditions, education, and awareness of African-American citizens in Austin and 
elsewhere.  She volunteered for the Travis County Health Department, among other 
organizations, and in the late 1970s, she devoted herself to promoting public awareness of 
African-American history in Austin.  She wrote a series of children’s books with stories of 
African-American family life in the early 1900s, contributed articles to scholarly journals as 



well as the Austin American-Statesman, and co-founded the W.H. Passon Society and the 
George Washington Carver Museum, both dedicated to the preservation of African-American 
culture and heritage in Austin. 
 
PARCEL NO.:  0206100604 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 11-12 BLK E OLT 8 OLT 62 DIV B COLLEGE HEIGHTS ADDN 
  
ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $5,883 (owner-occupied); city portion: $1,750 
(capped). 
 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $480,416 
 
PRESENT USE:  Residence 
 
CONDITION:  Excellent 
 
PRESENT OWNERS:   
Harold B. Groendyke and Catherine Lucchesi 
2005 Hamilton Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78702 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1939 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  Windows replaced (2014).  The replacement windows are in 
the same 1:1 configuration as the original windows.  
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  Dr. Charles and Ada Yerwood (1939) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LOCATION MAP 

 
 



 
 



 
 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 

 



 



 



 



 

 



 



 
 



 



 



 



 



 
 


